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EPCRA: Pursuant to Section 325 of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-To-Know
Act of 1986 (EPCRA), 42 U.S.C. 811045, Respondent Steeltech, Limited is assessed a
penalty of $ 61,736 for failing to file Toxic Chemical Release forms as to nickel
and chromium for calendar years 1989-1993, and cobalt for calendar year 1993, in
violation of Section 313 of EPCRA.
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Scott J. Steiner, Esquire

Rhoades, McKee, Boer, Goodrich & Titta
161 Ottawa Avenue, N.W., Suite 600
Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2793

For Intervenor:
George R. Ciampa, Esquire
Miniter and Associates

147 Charter Oak Avenue
Hartford, CT 06106-5100

1. PROCEDURAL HISTORY

On September 2, 1994, Corinne S. Wellish, Dlrector of the Envnronmental Sciences

D The Complaint charged
Respondent |n six _counts with violating Section 313 of the Emergency Plannlng and

1988, 1989 and 1990, chemicals which were manufactured., processed or '"otherwise
used"" by Respondent in those years in excess of the reporting threshold The

Complaint.

Upon Motion granted on March 14, 1995, Complainant filed an Amended Complaint
adding to the six original violations charged, five more counts, which alleged
Respondent further violated Section 313 of EPCRA by failing to file the requisite
Form Rs for nickel and chromium for calendar years 1992 and 1993, and for cobalt in

calendar year 1993. The Amended Complaint increased the proposed total combined
civil penalty to $84.390.

Respondent answered both the Complaint and the Amended Complaint, wherein it
asserted lack of knowledge or information sufficient to form a belief as to the
truth of the allegations of violation, and asserted factual issues and affirmative
defenses. Respondent requested a hearing before an Administrative Law Judge on all

issues. @

On April 6., 1995, Michael F. Farmer., former owner of Respondent company. was
granted leave to intervene in this action, based on the fact that he had entered
into an indemnification agreement when he had sold his stock in Respondent company
to the present owners on July 31, 1990. Mr. Farmer subsequently filed a Motion for
Partlal Accelerated DeC|S|on as to Counts | and 11 of the Amended Complaint,

On January 28, 1997, the undersigned issued an Order staying decision on
Intervenor s Motion for Partial Accelerated Decision pending decision by the

On July 15, 1997, Complainant filed a Motion for Accelerated Decision as to
Ilablllty and penalty on all Counts Respondent opposed the Motion. On August 29,
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the EAB"s decision in Lazarus.?

After due notice, a hearing was held in this matter before the undersigned
Administrative Law Judge on September 23, 1997 in Grand Rapids. Michigan.
Complalnant d|d not present any witnesses at the hearing. Intervenor and two

joint exhibits were admitted into evidence without obiection.(§l The transcript of
the hearing was received by the undersigned on October 15, 1997.€8) The record

not continuing in nature, and thus penalties for failure to prepare such documents
in the years preceding the five- year statute of I|m|tat|ons period were tlme

that |t was reducing the total combined proposed penalty sought to $74.390

reflecting a deduction of $5.000 for each of the two 1988 Counts. Accordingly.
since no _issue or controversy remained as to Counts I and 11, they were formally

Intervenor Michael F. Farmer began Respondent company in 1986, coincidentally the

same year that EPCRA was enacted,(gl and was Steeltech®s president and sole
stockholder untll 1990 Tr. 26. 43 While Mr. Farmer acknowledged that Steeltech

According to Mr. Farmer®s testimony., Respondent also hired an experlenced foundry
manager who was familiar with industry filing requirements, and Mr. Farmer attended
industry conferences and received regular informational mailings from a number of
national industry organizations regarding newly enacted laws and regulations
affecting the industry. Tr. 27-29. Nevertheless, Mr. Farmer testified that he never
became aware of EPCRA"s filing requirements and Steeltech never filed any Form Rs

during his tenure as owner. Tr. 29, 34-35.

On July 31, 1990, Mr. Farmer sold his stock in Steeltech to Gary Salerno, who had
been the company®"s manager of marketing since 1987, and Mr. Salerno s father.

to exceed $153.500) incurred as a result of Steeltech"s failure to comply with an
environmental law prior to sale. Ex. 11, p. 5 410
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interest in Steeltech in 1990, he was unaware of EPCRA"s filing requirements and

the company®s existing EPCRA violations. @1 Mr. Salerno testified that he
personally did not become aware of EPCRA"s filing requirements until September
1994, when he received the Complaint. Tr. 44, 57. 1t was at that point, Mr. Salerno
said, that he discovered that on February 12, 1992, his father, Armand. had
participated in an EPA EPCRA compliance inspection, which revealed that Respondent
had violated EPCRA by failing to file Form Rs regarding the nickel and chromium it

manufactured, processed or otherwise used during calendar years 1988, 1989 and
1990. A day after the inspection, Armand Salerno filed the missing forms. 422
Subsequently, Armand Salerno turned over responsibility for future EPCRA compliance
to Ron Wells, the company®s vice president of operations., who timely filed the Form
Rs for 1991.¢3) Mr. Salerno testified that in late 1992 or earl 1993 Mr. Wells

speC|f|caIIy transferred from Mr. Wells to Mr. Decker and. as a result, Mr. Decker
did not file any Form Rs for Respondent in 1992 or 1993. After receiving the

James Pews. Respondent®s chief financial officer and vice president of finance,
testified at the hearlng that when Steeltech hired him on September 26, 1994

1988, 1989 and 1990 Form Rs being filed only after the 1992 inspection., but also
revealed that after 1991 "the ball was dropped.'™ and no subsequent Forms Rs were

October 24, 1994, Mr. Pews made this "disclosure™ as to the additional violations
not set forth in the original Complaint. Tr. 76-77. Steeltech then filed its 1992

and 1993 Form Rs on November 15, 1994, and thereafter timely filed its 1994, 1995

and 1996 Forms Rs. 44 Tr_ 77, 81. Mr. Pews testified at the hearing that., to assure
future compliance W|th the EPCRA filing reQU|rements he "just now' placed the

time he purchased the business from Mr. Farmer and the first year there was a
possibility of the company filing for bankruptcy. Tr. 46, 60, 63. Mr. Pews
testified that Steeltech®s financial statements show that the company had a
significant deficit in 1990-1993. However, Steeltech®s fortunes turned in 1992 and
it began to make money, which the company has done every year since then- Mr. Pews

made $400.000, and in 1995 it made $500,000, before taxes. However., in 1996
Steeltech made onI 100.000 |n rofit. Mr. Pews indicated that all the profits

111. LEGAL CRITERIA APPLICABLE TO § 313 PENALTY DETERMINATIONS

recommended civil penalty to be assessed in the initial decision in
accordance with any criteria set forth in the Act relating to the proper
amount of a civil penalty., and must consider any civil penalty
guidelines issued under the Act.

40 C.F.R. 822.27(b emphasis added).
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B. EPA"s Civil Penalty Guidelines

On August 10, 1992, EPA"s Office of Compliance Monitoring of the Office of
Prevention, Pesticides and Toxic Substances issued the EPCRA Section 313

fair. uniform and consistent manner: that the enforcement response is appropriate
for the violation committed: and that persons will be deterred from committing

EPCRA §313 violations . . . " Ex. 2, p. 1.4D

The ERP utilizes a matrix and/or a per-day formula to determine a '‘gravity-based"
penalty accounting for the circumstance level and extent level of the violation at
issue. Once this gravity-based penalty is determined, the ERP provides that upward
or downward adjustments in that penalty may be made in conS|derat|on of other

such forms came due on July 1 of the following calendar year. The ERP defines a
violation under these 'circumstances'™ as a "failure to report in a timely manner
violation" and divides such violations into two categories. Category | covers
instances where the Form R reports are submitted one year or more after the July 1
due date: Category Il covers instances where the reports are submitted after the
July 1 due date but before July 1 of the following year. Ex 2. p. 4. Category 1

The ERP determines a violation®s "extent" level by looking at the size of the
V|olator S bu3|ness and the guantlty of the chemical used that is the subject of

corporate sales (Ex. 1 which used more than 10 times the reporting threshold for
the non-reported toxic chemical in the applicable calendar year are designated
"extent level B.'" Violations by the same size businesses, which used less than 10

times the threshold, are designated extent level e (8 By 2, p. 9.

After the circumstance and extent levels are determined in accordance with the ERP

those levels are mapped on a matrix in order to determlne the "gravuty—based

yvear after the filing deadline, the ERP provides a per-day formula which
establishes the percentage of the gravity-based penalty applicable to the
violation. Ex. 2, p. 8.

The second stage for determining the appropriate penalty under the ERP involves the

"adjustments' to the gravity-based penalty. The ERP allows for the gravity-based

penalty to be adjusted upward or downward for a number of factors including the
_following:

a) voluntary disclosure - a downward adjustment of up to 50%
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(d) attitude - a downward adjustment of up to 30%

e) other factors as justice may require - a downward adjustment of u
_to 25%.

In addition, ad|ustments are allowed in consideration of a respondent |mplement|ng
oj

to pay the proposed penalty.

The ERP indicates that adjustments for voluntary dlsclosure, hlstory of prlor

an adjustment for "attitude.' a SEP and/or inability to pay. is made only after a
complaint is issued. Ex. 2, p. 8. Further, the ERP indicates that an adjustment may
not be made for both attitude and voluntary disclosure, because those adjustments

are considered "mutually exclusive." Ex. 2, pp. 16, 18.
proceedings., a penalty policy. such as the EPCRA ERP, is not unquestionably applied
as if the policy were a rule with "binding effect." See., Employers Ins. of Wausau

and Grou ht Technolo Inc.. TSCA A eal No. 95 6. 6 EAD 735, 755-762 (EAB

dlscretlon either to adopt the rationale of an applicable penalty policy where
appropriate or to deviate from it where circumstances warrant.” DIC Americas, Inc..
TSCA Appeal No. 94-2. 6 EAD 184, 189 (EAB, Sept. 27, 1995). However, as indicated
above, the procedural Rules governing this proceeding require that "any civil
penalty guidelines" be 'considered” and that deviations from the amount of penalty
recommended to be assessed in the complaint be accompanied by specific reasons
therefor. See. Rule 22.27(b) (40 C.F.R. 8§22 27(b)).49

1V. EVALUATION OF COMPLAINANT®"S PENALTY CALCULATIONS

accordance with the ERP as follows:

A. Circumstance Level

As indicated above, the ERP provides that violations arising from the failure to
file a Form R in a timely manner may be cla55|f|ed either as a C|rcumstance level

"circumstance Level 4, to which a per day formula is applied to calculate the
_benalty.

supported by the record. There is no dlspute that Respondent filed its Form Rs for
1989 (due July 1990) and 1990 (due July 1991) on February 13, 1992. and filed its

Form Rs for 1992 (due July 1993) and 1993 (due July 1994) on November 15. 1994. Ex.
26 (Stips. 23 27 32 34, 41, 44, 50, 53, and 56 Respondent was more than one
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nickel), IV (1989 chromium), VII (1992 nickel) and VII1 1992 chromium) as involving
C|rcumstance level 1 V|0Iat|ons, and the per-day formula under C|rcumstance level 4

chromium) and XI (1993 cobalt).

B. Extent Level

As indicated above, the ' extent of the violation |s assessed in the ERP in three

In its calculations. to the benefit of Respondent. Complainant categorized

Steeltech as a company with less than 10 million dollars per year in gross annual
sales, as to each count. Ex. 3. The Complaint in this case was issued in September
1994. There was no testimony at the hearing nor were any records introduced
establishing exactly what Respondent®s gross annual sales were as of September
1994. Ex. 8. However, admitted into evidence without objection was a Dun &
Bradstreet Report dated December 1995, which indicates that Steeltech represented

Ex. 8. Therefore, Complainant®s categorization is supported by the record. 20

With regard to the quantity of chemicals at issue., relying upon usage amounts
stlpulated by the partles, Complainant categorlzed Respondents usage as to flve of

is 25.000 pounds per year for processing nickel, chromium or cobalt in 1989 and
subsequent years. EPCRA 313(H (B 40 C.F.R. 372.25(a). Respondent

stlpulated that it manufactured, processed or otherW|se used 351,625 pounds of

347,933 pounds of nickel in 1993 (Count IX). Ex. 1, 3., 5 and 26 (Stips. 22, 26, 31,
39, and 48).

categorized these Counts as involving violations where the unreported chemical was
manufactured, processed or otherwise used to an extent less than

10 times the threshold for reporting. These categorizations also appear well
supported by the record. For each of the years at issue (1989-1993 the reportin
threshold for chromium and cobalt was 25,000 pounds of the toxic chemical.

Respondent stipulated that it manufactured, processed or otherwise used 208,335
ounds of chromium in 1990 (Count VI 189,268 pounds of chromium in 1992 (Count

RN and 231,955 pounds of chromium in 1993 (Count X) and 162.369 pounds of
cobalt in 1993 (Count XI1). Ex. 1, 3. 5, and 26 (Stips. 33, 42, 51, and 54).

As a result, combining the categorlzatlon of Steeltech as a company with less than

1992 chromium Count X (1993 chromium and Count X1 (1993 cobalt).

111 (1989 nickel) Circumstance level 1 & Extent level
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Count 1V (1989 chromium) Circumstance level 1 & Extent level
Count V (1990 nickel) Circumstance level 4 & Extent level

Count VI (1990 chromium) Circumstance level 4 & Extent level C
Count VII (1992 nickel) Circumstance level 1 & Extent level
Count VII11(1992 chromium) Circumstance level 1 & Extent level C
Count IX (1993 nickel) Circumstance level 4 & Extent level
Count X (1993 chromium) Circumstance level 4 & Extent level C

Count X1 (1993 cobalt) Circumstance level 4 & Extent level C

(Counts V1. X and X1).

C. Gravity-Based Penalty

assigns a fixed gravity-based penalty of $5.,000.

As to the C|rcumstance level 4 violations, the graV|t¥—based penalty is not a fixed

Level 4 Penalt + (# of days late - 1)x(lLevel 1-level 4 Penalt

for Count 1X a gravity-based penalty of $6.000 plus $4.099. or $10.,099. Applyin
the formula to the C|rcumstance level 4/extent level C violation set out in Count

$1.490., or $2.490 per Count.

Thus, pursuant to the ERP, Complainant correctly calculated the total unadjusted
gravity-based penalties for the nine violations to be as follows:

Count 111 (1989 nickel) - Cir 1/Ext B = $17.000
Count 1V (1989 chromium) - Cir 1/Ext B = 17.000
Count V (1990 nickel - Cir 4/Ext B = 12,811
Count VI (1990 chromium) - Cir 4/Ext C = $ 3.477
Count VII1 (1992 nickel) - Cir 1/Ext B = $17.000
Count VII1(1992 chromium)- Cir 1/Ext C = $ 5.000
Count IX (1993 nickel - Cir 4/Ext B = 10,099
Count X (1993 chromium) - Cir 4/Ext C = $ 2.490
Count X1 (1993 cobalt) - Cir 4/Ext C = $ 2.490

$87.367

D. Adjustments- Voluntary Disclosure

indicated above, the ERP provides that the graV|ty based penalty may be adjusted

prior violations, delisted chemicals, attitude, ability to pay. and "other factors
as justice may require.” Ex. 2, p. 8. In this case, the only adjustment made by
Complainant to the penalty was made on the basis of voluntary disclosure.
Specifically, in calculating the proposed penalty under the ERP against Steeltech,
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50%" for "voluntary disclosure of a violation. To be eliqgible for voluntar

disclosure, the violator must submit a signed written statement of voluntary
disclosure and/or submit complete and signed Form Rs within 30 days of disclosure.
At the outset |t must be noted that the ERP prOV|des that "the Agency will not

has been notified of a scheduled inspection or the inspection has begun.' As
indicated in detail above, Steeltech did not disclose the 1992 and 1993 violations

untll after the 1992 |nspect|on occurred and after the original Complaint was

1989 violations. Tr. 76-77. However., the testimony of Mr. Pews indicates that

Steeltech"s "'voluntary disclosure' was not spontaneous: rather, it merely consisted
of his confirmation to EPA of the accuracy of information concerning the existence

of the additional violations, information which EPA had previousl rovided to him.

Nevertheless, Complainant., in its enforcement discretion, chose to consider those

violations to have been "voluntarily disclosed" within the meaning of the ERP and

There was no testimony at the hearing proffered by Complainant as to how the figure
of 35% was reached for voluntary disclosure. The only explanation for the
adjustment is set forth in the Amended Complaint whereln EPA proffered that

dlsclosure " that is disclosure and remediation within 30 days of disclosure, and

additional 25%. Rather. those criteria are:

disclosed to EPA.

Ex. 2, p. 15.

It is clear that Respondent met the first two, but not the third, criterion. As to
the first criterion, Mr. Pews testified that he discovered the 1992 and 1993

violations in October 1994, that he confirmed their existence to EPA that month
and filed the Form Rs for 1992 and 1993 on November 15, 1994. Tr. 76-77. Further

as to the second crlterlon, Respondent showed that it has ensured future compllance

testified that to assure that he fulfills this responS|b|I|ty, he monltors and

updates a computer spreadsheet which shows dates of expected receipt of EPCRA forms
and Form R flllnd dates. Tr. 68, 79, 88. As a result of Mr. Pews efforts, Steeltech
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Therefore., since Respondent met two of the three criteria, it is entitled to an
addltlonal reduction beyond the flrst 25%. The ERP provides that the 25% second

While Complainant proposed that Respondent receive the first 25% reduction and only
10% of the second 25% reduction, I conclude it is more approprlate to reduce the

of the second 25%., for a total reduction per Count of 42%.

1V. EVALUATION OF RESPONDENT"S PENALTY CONSIDERATIONS

additional adjustments within the framework of the ERP.

A. Application of the ERP

no way equates to the amount of the penalty being proposed by the EPA." Tr. 12.
Steeltech characterized the ERP and its monetary matrix as applying "to the most
recalcutrant vuolator of these statutory reguurements - . . someone who flles false

something in effect.” Tr. 14. In comparison., Respondent stated it was at ''the other
end of the spectrum." Tr. 14 15. SpeC|f|caIIy, Respondent argued that the ERP

Respondent argued the violation resulted in no harm to the enV|ronment. Further.
Respondent asserted that the "actual enforcement in the matter is unfalr" because:

instructions and blank forms, despite Respondent®s request to be placed on the list
and the promise made by EPA employees to do so: and (b) this action was not

instituted until 2 1/2 years after the |nspect|on and there was no communication

element. The purpose of the statute is to provide communities with information on
potential chemlcal hazards within their boundarles and to foster state and local

based upon the information provided in the Form Rs by covered facilities. The
public, in turn., has the right to know of the toxic chemicals manufactured,
processed or otherwise used and/or released at facilities in their communities as
well as the contents of the emergency response plans. See, Huls Amerlca, Inc. v.

Foundation, Inc v. United Musical Instruments, U.S.A.. Inc.., 61 F.3d 473. 474 (6th
Cir. 1995).

The environmental and public health goals of EPCRA cannot be achieved if a
facility., such as Steeltech, uses toxic chemicals in excess of the reporting
threshold but does not tlmely file a Form R with the EPA Administrator and state

Section 313 seriously impairs the public®s right to know about toxic chemicals, as
well as the Federal and state government s ability to respond to releases of tOXIC

prior to the inspection., Respondent had never filed any Form Rs so that al
emergency plan of action could be created and, even after the inspection, the
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Respondent was not able on its own to consistently comply with the filing
requirement so as to keep the emergency planning officials up to date as to the
toxic chemicals being handled on the premises of the facility. This error is made
more egregious by the fact that in many cases Steeltech was manufacturing,.

rocessing or otherwise using more than ten times the reportable threshold of the
toxic chemicals.

Consistent with the statute, EPA has set forth a policy in the ERP of strict
liability as to violations of EPCRA 313 with the intent of strongly discouragin

ignorance of EPCRA and its requirements. Ex. 2, p. 15. The circumstances, or
seriousness., of the violation, takes into account the accuracy and availability of

the information to the community., states, and Federal government. Ex. 2. p. 8.
Penalties for violations of EPCRA 313. failure to timely file Form Rs. are not

based upon direct harm to the environment, but upon harm to the integrity of the
toxic chemical data and public®s right to know that data, and the deprivation from
industries and Federal., state and local governments of that data to manage and

control toxic chemicals. (2 Contrary to Respondent®"s claim, the Policy is not
directed solely towards intentional., recalcitrant misfeasors, but rather

encompasses a whole range of violators and circumstances under which violations
occur roviding flexibility in the penalt roposed based upon circumstances.

This case presents no extraordinary circumstances which would suggest any deviation
from the ERP., so the gravity-based penalties calculated above, which are consistent
with Complainant®s proposed gravity-based penalties., will be assessed., except for

the further adjustments provided for herein.(23)

B. Additional Adjustments Under the ERP

In the event the ERP applied in this case., Respondent has raised factual issues
supporting a claim of entitlement to additional adjustments within the framework of

the ERP for attitude and other factors as justice may reguire.ﬁﬁu

1. Attitude

As noted above, the ERP provides that reductions for "attitude' and for "voluntary

disclosure' are mutually exclusive, since both factors address a facility"s concern
with timely compliance. Ex. 2 . 16. Therefore, only Counts 111 through VI are

eligible for reduction on the basis of "attitude' under the ERP_(22)

The ERP provides that up to a 15 percent reduction may be made for a respondent®s
cooperation throughout the compliance and enforcement process. such as degree of
cooperation and preparedness during the inspection, allowing access to records,
responsiveness and expeditious provision of supporting documentation requested by
EPA, and cooperation and preparedness during the settlement process. According to
the ERP, the penalty may be additionally reduced by up to 15 percent for good faith

efforts to comply with EPCRA, and the speed and completeness with which it comes
into compliance. Ex. 2, p. 15.

The record shows that Respondent submitted Form Rs for 1989 and 1990 on the day
following the EPA"s inspection which revealed the violations. Tr. 75, Ex. 15, 16

17. The record shows also that Respondent made several requests to get onto EPA’s
mailing list for EPCRA forms., including Mr. Pews" requests by telephone in October
1994 and April 1995 and in writing in December 1994 and May 1995. Tr. 68-69, 75,
77-78, 87. Respondent was not on EPA"s mailing list for EPCRA forms until after May
1995. Tr. 75, 77-78. The record shows that Respondent responded to EPA"s Notice of

Technical Error on Respondent®s 1993 Form Rs by correcting them within a month. Tr.
78.

There is no testimony or evidence in the exhibits, such as the inspection report,
stating that Respondent was or was not cooperative during the inspection or
settlement process. In fact, none of the participants in the inspection testified

at the hearing. However, Respondent appears to have been reasonably prepared for
the inspection and forthcoming in supplying Complainant with information. Ex. 1. 5.
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Respondent generally asserts that it has been "most cooperative™ once it learned of

the reporting requirements, and Complainant has not denied this assertion.
Respondent®s Post-Hearing Brief at 11.

It is clear that after the initial violations occurred, the steps undertaken by
Respondent to prevent further violations after the inspection were far from
thorough, in that apparently the President/majority stockholder was never even
informed of the inspection and EPCRA issues by his father/minority stockholder so
he could be aware of the need to take steps to assure compliance. Moreover,
Respondent did not timely respond to a Notice of Noncompliance it received on June

1997. Ex. 26 (Stip. 25).

In consideration of all these factors. a reduction of 20% will be made to the

penalties for Counts 111 through VI, for Respondent®s cooperation and good faith
efforts to comply with EPCRA.

2. Other Factors as Justice May Require

The ERP provides that gravity-based penalties may be reduced up to 25% based upon

"other factors as justice may reQU|re, |nclud|ng such matters as "'new ownership
for history of V|olat|ons i i

Respondent argues that it is entitled to the full 25% *other factors'™ reduction
based upon new ownership and lack of control over the violations.

As to new ownership., it is true that the Form Rs for calendar year 1989 were due
prior to the time that Steeltech®s current owners (Gary and Armand Salerno)
acquired the company. Thus, a judgment against Steeltech for the 1989 violations
could be seen as penalizing the current owners for a violation that is attrlbutable

might be a reasonable basis for a reduction in the penalty as to these counts.
However., because of the existing indemnification arrangements between Mr. Farmer,
Steeltech"s prior owner, and Gary Salerno, one of Steeltech"s current owners,
Steeltech and its current owners will not have to pay the penalty for Mr. Farmer's
misfeasance. Therefore., 1 see no basis for reducing the penalty on 1989 counts the
basis of the change of ownership.

Respondent also asserts it is entitled to a reduction because of lack of control
over the violations based upon employee turnover. However, the record clearly
indicates that the employee turnovers were not sudden, unexpected, Or SO0 numerous
such that Respondent could not have easily transferred responsibility for filing
the Form Rs in the ordinary course of business. After the inspection occurred in
February 1992, Armand Salerno, one of Steeltech®s owners, took it upon himself to

bring the company into compliance. He then turned over the responsibility for
filing the Form Rs to Ron Wells, who timely filed the form Rs for 1991 by July 1.

replacement and transfer corporate duties does not constitute an understandable
and/or excusable "lack of control over the violations due to employee turnover or

|UStIC€ may requ ire.

Another factor Respondent insists on having considered is EPA"s lack of diligence
in pursuing this action. Respondent points out that Complainant waited over two
yvears after the |nspect|on to file the Complalnt, and did not correspond W|th

the inspection., Respondent asserts that it could have raised an inability to pay
defense.
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First, it is unclear that had the case been timely filed, Respondent would have
been able to successfully raise an inability to pay defense. The earliest the case
could have been reasonably filed would be about February, 1992, immediately after
the |nspect|on whlch revealed the 1988, 1989 and 1990 V|olat|ons As to the 1988

not simply be Steeltech”s own inability to pay which would be at issue., but also
Mr. Farmer®"s ability to pay for those years. There is no evidence that Mr. Farmer

could not pay the penalty sought for the four violations charged in those years

pay" defense in any year- On the other hand., it is noted that the delay in flllng

one way., since it resulted in two counts of the Complaint being withdrawn/dismissed
on _statute of limitations grounds.

Second, EPA did contact Steeltech after the inspection and before this action was
instituted. In June of 1992, EPA sent Steeltech a Notice of Noncompliance as to its
1989 Form R for nickel. Steeltech never responded to that Notice and never filed a
corrected Form R for 1989. Ex. 26 (Stips. 24 and 25). Thus. in terms of contact
during the interim period after the inspection and before the lawsuit, the ball was
in Steeltech"s court.(8)

In sum, 1 find that the only adjustments which should be made to the gravity-based
penalty derived from application of the ERP is 20% for attitude as to Count 111,

1V, V. and VI and 42% for voluntary disclosure as to Counts VII, VIII, IX, X and
X1,

Count I11: 17.000 ravity-based penalt
- 20% less adjustment for attitude
$13.600
Count 1V: 17.000 ravity-based penalt
- 20% less adjustment for attitude
$13.600
Count V: 12.811 ravity-based penalt
- 20% less adjustment for attitude
$10.249
Count VI: 3.477 ravity-based penalt
- 20% less adjustment for attitude
$ 2,782
Count V11 17.000 ravity-based penalt
- 42% less adjustment for voluntary disclosure
$ 9.860
Count V111 5,000 ravity-based penalt
- 42% less adjustment for voluntary disclosure
$ 2.900
Count 1IX 10,099 ravity-based penalt
- 42% less adjustment for voluntary disclosure
$ 5.857
Count X 2.490 ravity-based penalt
- 42% less adjustment for voluntary disclosure
$ 1.444
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Count XI $ 2,490 gravity-based penalty

- 42% less adjustment for voluntary disclosure
$ 1.444

CONCLUSION

chromium and nickel for calendar years 1989, 1990, 1992 and 1993, and as to cobalt
for calendar vear 1993, in violation of Section 313 of the Emergency Plannlng and

all the factors in this case.

the date this Initial Decision becomes the Final Order of the Agency. by submitting
a certified or cashier"s check in the amount of $61.736 ayable to the Treasurer

United States of America, and mailed to:

EPA - Region V
P.0O. Box 70753

Chicago. Il. 60673

Order of the Agency forty flve (45) days after service upon the parties and without

further proceedings, unless an appeal is taken pursuant to 40 C.F.R. 822.30 or the

Environmental Appeals Board elects., sua sponte., to review this decision. An appeal
must be filed within twent 20) days after service of this Initial Decision upon

the parties. 40 C.F.R. § 22.30(a).

Susan L. Biro
Chief Administrative lLaw Judge

Date: May 27, 1998
Washington, D.C.

1. The Director”s authority to institute the action was delegated to her by the
Regional Administrator of EPA Region V. who, in turn. was delegated such authority

by the Administrator of the Environmental Protection Agency. See, EPA Region V
Manual Dele ation No. 22- 3 August 15, 1989 Ex. 6) and EPA Administrator

Head s retirement, in January 1997, the case was reassigned to the underS|gned
Presiding Judge.

4. Thereafter, the Respondent filed a Motion for Reconsideration and Complainant
filed a Motion to Strike Defenses and both Motions were denied on September 17,
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1997.
5. At the hearing., the partles unegulvocally presented that a total of twenty-six

7. On December 16, 1997, Respondent filed a Motion to Strike Complainant®s Reply
Brief as untimely. Pursuant to an Order issued by the undersigned on October 20,

1997, reply briefs were due to be filed 20 days after receipt of the opposing
arty"s initial post-hearing brief. The Order stated that "[b]riefs filed after the

deadlines established will not be considered unless an extension for time was

previously granted.' Respondent®s initial post-hearing brief was sent to
Complainant via Federal Express on November 13, 1997, and was delivered to EPA"s
mailroom on November 14, 1997. Respondent asserts that Complainant was required to
file its reply by December 4, 1997, which is twenty days from November 14th.

s initial

counsel®s delay in receiving Respondent®s initial brief until November 18 1997-

For the reasons stated in Complainant®s opposition, Respondent®s Motion to Strike
Complainant”s Reply Brief will be denied.

October 17, 1986 (100 Stat. 1733). Section 313 required that covered entities

submit Toxic Chemical Release Forms (Form Rs) on or before July 1, 1988 and
annually thereafter. See, 42 U.S.C. 811023(a).

9. Mr. Farmer testified that he first learned about the filing requirements under
EPCRA in 1994, when the current owners asserted their |ndemn|f|cat|0n rights

was only one of Mr. Farmer®s many bu5|nesses and the time he spent at Steeltech was
"very limited." Tr. 60.

10. The parties did not introduce into evidence the final executed sale agreement
between the Intervenor and Armand Salerno. The draft agreement presented (Ex. 12

agreement with Gary Salerno.

experts., both gentlemen claimed that the due dlllgence review never uncovered the

EPCRA filing violations or the application of EPCRA to the business and the
indemnification provision with its peculiar amount 153.500) was included as a

"normal clause." Tr. 33-34, 61-62.

12. Gary Salerno testified at the hearing that upon purchasing the company., he took
responS|b|I|t¥ for sales and marketing and was away from the facility most of the

company. and worked therein for 3-4 years, Gary Salerno claimed his father never
held a "title of vice president or manager or anything like that" and never
received any renumeration for his work. Tr. 47-48, 62. A number of exhibits,
however, indicate that Armand Salerno held himself out as having the title of

‘Director, Corporate Planning." Ex. 1., 16
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13 Gary Salerno testlfled that |n about 1993 or 1994, hIS father "retlred " that

that his father"s status as the minority stockholder changed at any point. Gary
Salerno stated that hIS father never contemporaneously |nformed him of the EPCRA

Armand Salerno did not testify at the hearing.

14. Although the Form Rs introduced |nto evidence do not reflect any releases of

that the non-reporting of these releases on the original 1993 Form R triggered
issuance of a Notice of Technical Error and the corrected 1993 Forms were refiled

in May of 1995. Tr. 78, 81.

15. Both Mr. Pews and Mr. Salerno testified as to the fact that Steeltech has not

been annually receiving from EPA the Form Rs instructions and blank form package.

even though the Company had requested that it be placed on EPA"s mailing list. Tr.
75, 44

16. Some judges have relled upon criteria for other types of EPCRA V|0Iat|ons to

determining the exact amount of the civil penalty to be imposed in a specific case,
the Admlnlstrator shall take |nto account the "nature C|rcumstances extent and

violations of EPCRA"s emergency notification prOV|S|ons provides for a penalty of
to $25.000 per day for violations of EPCRA 304. Section 325(b)(2) incorporates

by reference the penalty assessment procedures and provisions of Section 16 of the

penalty assessment criteria reveals, however, that the penalty factors listed
TSCA Section 16 are nearly identical to those in EPCRA Section 325(b)(1)(C except

that the factor of "effect on ability to continue to do business' is substituted

for "economic benefit or savings." Neither of these factors is an issue in this
_case.

17. The page citations to the ERP are to the page numbers used in the document
itself and not to the number of pages of the exhibit counting chronologically.

18. Violations committed by businesses with over 10 million dollars in corporate

sales and 50 employees or more, which used in the applicable calendar year more

than 10 times the reporting threshold of the chemical. are designated as "extent
_level A."

19. The Rules also require that "The dollar amount of the proposed civil penalty

that it supersedes any inconsistent provisions in other penalty and enforcement
policies, but to the extent that they are not inconsistent., they apply in
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conjunctlon with the Self—POI|C|ng Policy. 60 Fed. Reg at 66712 However that

fallen into category A providing for a higher gravity-based penalty. However, to
Respondent®s benefit, even as to the subsequently added Counts, EPA calculated
Steeltech”s size as of the date of the original Complaint.

would have assumed that, as a matter of course, before an action is filed and a

penalty proposed, EPA would take a few moments to determine if there are any
additional similar violations which have occurred since the original inspection

justice concerns.' Office of Pollution Preventlon and Toxics. EPA Public Data
Release., 1993 Toxic Release lInventor March 1995 . 4.

23. Respondent and Intervenor assert that there was only one violation, of failure
to know the EPCRA reporting requirements. Sections 313 and 325(c) of EPCRA are
clear, however, that a separate penalty may be assessed for each Form R that was
not timely filed. Section 313 provides that a separate "form . . . for each toxic

chemical processed . during the preceding year' must be submitted for
each ear that it was rocessed in_excess of the threshold amount Section 325(c

know of its legal obligations cannot reasonably be applied to the violations
occurring after the 1992 inspection, which provided direct personal notice of
EPCRA"s filing requirements to Respondent.

24. The parties do not dispute that Steeltech has no prior violations and that no
delisted chemicals are at issue, and Respondent has not claimed inability to pay

the proposed penalty. so the penalties will not be adjusted for those factors. See,
New Waterbur Ltd.., 5 E_.A.D. 529, 541, TSCA Appeal No. 93-2., at 15 (EAB. Oct. 20

1994) ("'where a respondent does not raise inability to pay as an issue in its

answer, or fails to produce any evidence to support an inability to pay claim after
being apprised of that obligation during the pre-hearing process . . . the
presiding officer may conclude that any objection to the penalty based upon ability

to pay has been waived under the Agency®s procedural rules and thus this factor
does not warrant a reduction of the proposed penalty'™).

violations, both of which the Agency should reward, its decision to treat them
always as "mutually exclusive' seems questionable. However, since in this case, EPA
considered Steeltech®s mere confirmation of information told to it by the Agency as
"voluntary disclosure.'" for which | have found Steeltech entitled to a 42%

reduction as to five counts, 1 find an additional adjustment based upon attitude as
to those Counts unwarranted.
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Noncompliance as to the 1989 Form R, but apparently. within its prosecutorial
discretion, chose not to. The ERP classifies failure to respond to a Notice of

Ex. 2 -

Noncompliance as a lLevel 5 violation warranting up to a $5.000 penalty.
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